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NEWHAM COLLEGE OF FURTHER EDUCATION 
MEMBERS' REPORT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 JULY 2019 

NATURE, OBJECTIVES AND STRATEGIES: 

The members present their report and the audited financial statements for the year ended 31 July 2019. 

Legal status 

The Corporation was established under the Further and Higher Education Act 1992 for the purpose of 
conducting Newham College of Further Education. The College is an exempt charity for the purposes of 
Part 3 of the Charities Act 2011. 

Mission 

Governors reviewed the College's vision, mission and strategy in 2017. 

College vision 

A learning & skills revolution leading to resilient, high achieving, prosperous residents and employers. 

College mission 

Skills, qualifications and progression for all by means of: 

• Learning that is demand led and customised to individual, business and community needs 

• Enabling success and progression for all, including those in the workforce and those at the 
greatest distance from it in terms of social and economic exclusion 

• Constant improvement through specialisation and innovation. 

Public benefit 

The College is an exempt charity under Part 3 of the Charities Act 2011. Its principal regulator is the 
Secretary of State for Education. The members of the Corporation, who are trustees of the charity, are 
disclosed on pages 18 and 19. 

In setting and reviewing the College's strategic objectives, the Corporation has had due regard for the 
Charity Commission's guidance on public benefit and particularly upon its supplementary guidance on 
the advancement of education. The guidance sets out the requirement that all organisations wishing to 
be recognised as charities must demonstrate, explicitly, that their aims are for the public benefit. 

College strategy 

The college strategy has been developed and a Strategic Plan devised. This plan builds on the theme 
of prioritisation for "Unleashing Your Potential", offering thirteen goals for the achievement of the 
strategy of ensuring access, success and progress. Achieving these goals will require collaboration 
among Board members, staff, and students from across Newham College. 

The thirteen goals within the strategic plan are as follows; 

• Provide Learners with the skills, qualifications, support and enterprising ambition to progress to 
further study and employment 

• Continue to develop the widening participation agenda 

• Provide strong leadership and governance to support staff and students to succeed 

• Lead and develop robust local, regional and national partnerships to maximise influence in the 
learning and skills landscape 

• Deliver a curriculum that has at least 95% synergy with local and Local Enterprise Partnership 
(LEP) skills priorities 
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• Drive ambitious students centred quality teaching and learning to achieve Outstanding Ofsted 
recognition 

• Be a lead provider for three curriculum specialisms in East London 

• Be a lead provider for high quality apprenticeships in London 

• Establish a new college campus that provides future proofed, safe, inclusive, high quality, 
secular learning environments that enable students to achieve their potential 

• To maintain at least Education and Skills Funding Agency (ESFA) 'Good' financial health 

• To develop a robust commercial income strand to support growth 

• To create lean 'corporate core' services allowing resources to be focused on service delivery 

• To develop systematic engagement with employers to meet employer needs and maximise 
progression into employment 

Key achievements towards this strategy in 2018/19 were: 

Some of the key achievements are listed below ... 

• The College has again received The Mayor's Construction Academy Quality Mark in 2018 for 
providing excellent standards of training in construction and is accredited with the National 
Skills Academy for Rail. 

• The College has successfully achieved whole college accreditation for Matrix, highlighting our 
excellent approach to careers and advice and guidance throughout the organisation. 

• The College has entered into a strategic partnership with the National High Speed Rail College 
and offer collaborative courses at our Stratford Campus to both employers and students. 

• In collaboration with Erasmus, the College offers a highly successful international work 
experience opportunity and in 2018/19 nearly 100 students took part in work experience 
abroad. 

• Newham College is the only Further Education College in London to be accredited as a 
Department for Education's (Of E) Maths Centre of Excellence. 

• The College hosted the annual Big Bang London East event on the 30th June 2019. On the 
day, over 2,000 students and school pupils from East London and surrounding areas took part 
in a programme of activities that excite young people about science, technology, engineering 
and maths. 

• The College continued free lunches for all 16-18 learners during 2018/19 and free breakfast for 
all. These are important initiatives to assist young learners to arrive early and stay in college. 

Across the Group operations ... 

• The Learning Revolution Trust (LRT) hosted the annual Student Awards ceremony which 
rewards Newham College's highest achieving students and the Shining Stars Awards 
Ceremony which was held at the East Ham Auditorium. This event enabled LRT to distribute 
£52,598 of donations made by benefactors in bursaries and hardship grants to learners of the 
College during 2018/19. 
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• The subsidiary Newham Training and Education Centre (NEWTEC) strengthened its external 
recognitions by being awarded UK Charity of the Year 2019 at the National Centre for Diversity 
Grand Awards. 

• The Fashion and Textile Museum has had a fantastic year welcoming 58,000 visitors through 
the doors. The blockbuster exhibition Swinging London: A Lifestyle Revolution featured designs 
by Mary Quant and Terence Conran, while Weavers of the Clouds: Textile Arts of Peru saw 
collaborations with the British Museum and national cultural institutions in Peru. The touring 
programme continues to grow with exhibitions touring worldwide, including Orla Kiely in 
Edinburgh, Artist Textiles to China and The World of Anna Sui in New York, cementing the 
Museum's reputation for producing world-class exhibitions. For the next year the Museum looks 
forward to celebrating two 50 year anniversaries in Zandra Rhodes: 50 Years of Fabulous and 
Out of the Blue: Fifty years of Designers Guild. 

• Digital Skills Solutions Limited (DSS) has continued to build on its core focus of apprenticeship 
delivery. This has supported the additional educational programmes that are aimed at meeting 
the needs of the sector by running short courses that give greater flexibility to both learners and 
employer. 

as an employer .. ; .. 

• The College delivered two successful staff conferences and two staff development days 
focused on improving teaching and learning. 

• Newham College ranked se" nationally in the Stonewall Equality Index 2019. 

working with local employers .... 

• The College works in partnership with BARTS National Health Trust providing routes into work 
to the NHS and developing skills for existing staff to progress within their careers. 

• The College works closely with employers to help shape the curriculum offer and to provide the 
skills and experience necessary to support students in their chosen career. 

• The College delivered apprenticeship training for more than 20 Apprentice Levy paying 
employers in the year, and was appointed by the National Health Service to deliver 
apprenticeships in London. 

• The College continues to be one of the main sponsors of Newham Chamber of Commerce. 

Financial objectives 

The group's outturn for 2018/19 is a deficit of -£5,018k. The college has taken robust action to ensure 
its return to a firmer financial footing for 2019/20 through the development of a robust Financial Plan. 
The College's financial objectives are: 

• To achieve at least a "Good" financial health status with the Education and Skills Funding 
Agency (ESFA) for 2019/20 

• To develop improved commercial income strands to support growth 
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Peñormance indicators 

The Education & Skills Funding Agency (ESFA) measures further education colleges' performance in 
terms of contribution to national targets and reviews individual colleges against annual funding targets 
which contains discrete qualification targets. 

The College is committed to perform at or above sector benchmarks and uses the FE Choices data 
available on the GOV.UK website which looks at measures such as success rates. The College is 
required to complete the annual Finance Record for the Education & Skills Funding Agency ("ESFA"). 

The College is assessed by the Education & Skills Funding Agency as having a "Requires 
Improvement" financial health grading in 2018/19. 

FINANCIAL POSITION 

Financial results 

In 2018/19 the Group generated an operating deficit of -£5,018k. 

The Group has accumulated reserves of £12,749k, and cash in hand of £3,846k. 

Group tangible fixed asset additions during the year amounted to £1,228k. This was split between 
buildings improvements of £770k, motor vehicles of £1 k and equipment purchases of £456k and in the 
main related to the development of a new training kitchen, a new high needs faculty and small electrical 
and engineering work over both main campuses, classroom upgrades and the continuing upgrade of IT 
software and hardware. 

The College has significant reliance on the ESFA for its principal funding source, largely from grant 
funding. In the 2018/19 year the total funding body grants provided 77.5% (76.6% in 2017/18) of the 
College's total income. 

The College has vested interest in seven companies, East London College Services Limited, Newham 
Foundation, Digital Skills Solutions Limited, Newham Training and Education Centre, Learning 
Revolution Trust, The Fashion & Textile Museum and East London College Alliance Limited. Any 
surpluses generated by the subsidiaries may be transferred to the College. In the current year East 
London College Services Limited, The Fashion & Textile Museum and East London College Alliance 
Limited did not trade, Newham Foundation recorded a break even position for its activities, Digital Skills 
Solutions Limited recorded a surplus of £87k in its activities, Newham Training and Education Centre 
recorded an operating deficit of -£1,369k for its activities and Learning Revolution Trust Limited 
recorded an operating deficit of -£12k for its activities. 

Treasury policies and objectives 

Treasury management is the management of the College's cash flows, its banking, money market and 
capital market transactions; the effective control of the risks associated with those activities; and the 
pursuit of optimum performance consistent with those risks. 

The College complies with its treasury management policy where short term borrowing for temporary 
revenue purposes is authorised by the Chief Operating Officer (COO). The College complies with any 
requirements of the Education & Skills Funding Agency (ESFA) Financial Memorandum in arranging 
borrowing facilities and all medium or long-term borrowing is subject to the approval of the Corporation. 

Cash flows 

At £260k a positive (2017/18 - £2,749k positive inflow) net cash flow from operating activities is 
reported driven by robust financial performance. The group cash position is £3.8m (2017/18 - £4.8m) at 
the year end. 
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Liquidity 

During the year the College spent £1,135k, 2018: £622k (Group 2019: £1,227k, 2018: £666k) on the 
acquisition of tangible fixed assets. 

The College's total borrowing has been calculated to ensure a safe cushion between the cost of 
servicing debt and operating cash flow. 

Reserves Policy 

The College's aim is to maintain appropriate amount of cash at bank and in hand of at least £2m (20 
days) or above. The College's current cash in hand and at bank is £3.8m. 

The Corporation aims to maintain reserves in unrestricted funds to sustain its activities to avoid closure 
if funding difficulties materialise. The Corporation has agreed a target to maintain financial reserves at a 
level to ensure that main operations can continue for a period of 6 months, approximating to £20m. The 
current level of unrestricted reserves is £13.4m. 

The main focus of the Corporation is to make education accessible to all, in order to ensure that a 
learning and skills revolution can take place that leads to resilience, high achievement and prosperity 
for residents and employers and making sure that sufficient funds are available to achieve this aim. 

CURRENT AND FUTURE DEVELOPMENT AND PERFORMANCE 

Student numbers 

In 2018/19 the College has delivered activity that has generated £26.1 million in ESFA main allocation 
funding (2017/18 - £26.4 million). The College had approximately 11,046 funded and 510 non-funded 
students. 

Curriculum developments 

In 2018/19 the College recruited 11,046 students. 

The College has a well-managed curriculum offer which is reviewed and revised regularly to meet the 
needs of the students, employers and the local community. Courses have been devoted to ensure 
student choice, but also to develop student's skills so they are able to access the job market. 

For the Ofsted Inspection in April 2016 the College achieved "Good" in all areas. 

Payment performance 

The Late Payment of Commercial Debts (Interest) Act 1998, which came into force on 1 November 
1998, requires Colleges, in the absence of agreement to the contrary, to make payments to suppliers 
within either the provision of goods or services or the date on which the invoice was received. The 
target set by the Treasury for payment to suppliers within 30 days is 95 per cent. The College aims to 
pay suppliers promptly. All payments are in line with effective cash flow management within the College 
group. During the accounting period 1 August 2018 to 31 July 2019, the College paid 95 per cent of its 
invoices within 30 days and/or within corporation approved policy. The College incurred no interest 
charges in respect of late payment for this period. 

Future prospects 

The following developments relate to better financial performance for the College. 

• To complement ESFNGreater London Authority (GLA) funding, the College anticipates over 
the next two years an increase in commercial income and maintaining apprenticeships based 
on current trends in the Newham Borough 
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• The College will continue to drive excellence with an innovative curriculum utilising our key 
strengths and to help deliver to the local agenda and meet employer skills needs 

• Working in partnership with organisations to form strong alliances whilst establishing closer 
links with employers and key stakeholders 

• A strong relationship with the local council. The London Borough of Newham (LBN) and the 
College continue to work together for the benefit of local learners, residents and employers 

GOING CONCERN 

The annual accounts have been prepared on a going concern basis. The corporation is not aware of 
any material uncertainties relating to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt upon the 
College's ability to continue as a going concern. 

In reaching this conclusion the Corporation has made an assessment of the College's ability to continue 
as a going concern and has taken into account all available information about the future, including the 2 
year Financial Plan submitted to the ESFA on 31st July 2019. 

RESOURCES 

The College has diverse resources that it can deploy in pursuit of strategic objectives, including: 

Property 

The main college sites, comprising some 40, 169m2 of accommodation, are at East Ham and Stratford. 
Both sites have the resources and capability to deliver teaching objectives. The College also utilises a 
number of other smaller satellite sites. 

Financial 

The College Group has £13.4 million of net assets (including £25.4 million pension liability and long 
term debt of £1.3 million repayable by July 2027). 

People 

The Group employed 657 staff (expressed as full time equivalents), of whom 242 were direct teaching 
staff and 415 are Teaching Support / Business Support / Assessor staff. These employees include 
hourly paid staff, agency temporary personnel and self-employed consultants. 

Reputation 

The College has an excellent local, regional and national reputation. 

Knowledge 

The College has excellent know-how in all aspects of further education and in its subject specialisms. It 
also has exceptional know-how in terms of innovation, collaboration and project development and 
completion. 
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PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES 

The College has undertaken further work during the year to develop and embed the system of internal 
control, including financial, operational and risk management which is designed to protect the College's 
assets and reputation. 

Based on the strategic plan, the Executive Board undertakes a comprehensive review of the risks to 
which the College is exposed. The Executive Board identifies systems and procedures, including 
specific preventable actions to mitigate any potential impact on the College. The internal controls are 
implemented and the subsequent year's appraisal reviews their effectiveness and progress against risk 
mitigation actions. 

A risk register is reviewed by the Executive Board regularly. This is maintained at the College Group 
level, which is reviewed at least three times yearly by the Audit and Risk Committee. The risk register 
identifies the key risks, the likelihood of those risks occurring, their potential impact on the College 
Group and the actions being taken to reduce and mitigate the risks. Risks are prioritised using a 
consistent scoring system. 

Outlined below is a description of the principal risk factors that may affect the College. Not all the 
factors are within the College's control. Other factors besides those listed below may also adversely 
affect the College. 

1. Government funding 

The College relies considerably on government funding through its respective funding agencies. In 
2018/1977.5% of the College's revenue was ultimately publicly funded and this level of state funding is 
expected to continue. There can be no assurance that government policy or practice will remain the 
same or that public funding will continue at the same levels or on the same terms. 

The College has continued to reduce its cost structure accordingly, resulting in staff and non-staff 
savings. There is a robust programme in place to ensure a financial surplus of £200k budgeted in 
2019/20 before pension adjustments. 

2. Tuition fee loans 

In 2018/19 £1,041 k in tuition fee loans for adults aged 19+ on level three provision was taken up by 
local students through the College. This is still regarded as a key risk area and a targeted focus during 
2019/20. The budget has been set at a similar level for 2019/20. 

3. Maintain adequate funding of pension liabilities 

The financial statements report the share of the pension scheme deficit on the College's balance sheet 
in line with the requirements of FRS 102. Accounting for defined benefit pension schemes, such as the 
local government pension scheme, under FRS 102 is a potential risk as the relevant pension scheme is 
not under the direct control of the College and is accounted for in accordance with the advice of 
independent qualified actuaries. However, the valuation is underpinned by actuarial assessment for 
future salary increases (except in the first three years when College pay assumptions have been used), 
inflation, investment returns and member longevity which are analytically unverifiable and may in the 
medium to long term prove to be materially different. The College accepts that the accounting standard 
presents a deficit as shown but in fact there is significantly less of a deficit in actuality based on the last 
full actuarial valuation. 

4. Accommodation strategy 

In 2018/19 the College will review and develop its accommodation strategy and will continue to 
dedicate capital expenditure, although at a much reduced value, to maintain its campuses to the 
highest possible standard and to effectively manage space according to curriculum priorities. 
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5. Project funding 

The Corporation actively encourages the College's partnerships, innovation and project-focused 
funding diversification, as led by the Apprenticeships, Partnerships and Innovation team (API formerly 
CIPs). At anyone time, the API team may be managing a range of different projects with different 
funding streams and each with a discrete regulatory and audit requirement. Projects and their funding 
streams have start and end dates throughout the year, and often straddle across a number of years. 

Particular stresses on cash flow ensue from the delays experienced in funders making payments after 
protracted audits, sometimes meaning that the College is waiting up to two years for payment against 
completed project outcomes, on liabilities which may run into six figures. 

STAKEHOLDER RELATIONSHIPS 

Newham College of Further Education has a diverse range of stakeholders, such as LBN, and 
recognises the importance of these relationships and is in regular communication with them. 

Trade union facility time 

Relevant union officials 
Numbers of employees who were relevant 
union officials during the year 
FTE employee number 

2 
0.1 

Percentage of time spent on facility time 
Percentage of time 
0% 
1-50% 
51-99% 
100% 

Number of employees 

2 

Percentage of pay bill spent on facility time 
Total cost of facility time 
Total pay bill 
Percentage of total pay bill spent on facility time 
Paid trade union activities 
Time spent on paid trade union activities as a percentage 
of total paid facility time hours 

£45,314 
£18,881,000 

0.24% 

100% 

Strategic alliances 

The College will continue to pursue opportunities, with appropriate evaluation, for strategic alliances 
and partnerships as they emerge. 

Equal opportunities and employment of disabled persons 

Newham College of Further Education ìs.cornrnttted to ensuring equality of opportunity for all who learn 
and work at the College. The College respects and values positively differences in race, gender, sexual 
orientation, ability, class and age. The College strives vigorously to remove conditions which place 
people at a disadvantage and it actively combats intolerance and harassment. This policy is resourced, 
implemented and monitored on an annual basis. 

The College's Equality and Diversity Policies are regularly reviewed and published on the College's 
Intranet. The yearly Equality and Diversity report is published on the College's Intranet and web page. 
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The College considers all applications from disabled people, bearing in mind the aptitudes of the 
individuals concerned. The College has held the Positive about Disability accreditation since 1996. 
Where an existing employee becomes disabled, every effort is made to ensure that employment with 
the College continues. The College's policy is to provide training, career development and opportunities 
for promotion for disabled people, which are, as far as possible, identical to those for other employees. 

An equalities plan is published each year and monitored by managers and governors. 

Disability statement 

The College complies with the requirements of the Equality Act 2010 (which consolidates an array of 
anti-discriminatory legislation) by providing equal treatment in access to employment as well as private 
and public services, regardless of the protected characteristics of age, disability, gender reassignment, 
marriage and civil partnership, race, religion or belief, sex and sexual orientation. 

The College employs specialist learning support staff who provide information and advice to students 
with disabilities. The staff also arrange and give support to learners as required. 

The College makes available to students specialist equipment such as digital magnifiers and 
convertors. There is also a range of assistive technology on hand in the learning centres. 

The Admissions policy for all students is described in the College Charter. Appeals against a decision 
not to offer a place are dealt with under the Complaints Policy. 

The College has made a significant investment in the appointment of specialist lectures to support 
students with learning difficulties and/or disabilities. There is a dedicated team of qualified student 
support staff who provide a variety of support for learning. There is a continuing programme of staff 
development to ensure the provision of a high level of appropriate support for students who have 
learning difficulties and/or disabilities. Specialist programmes are described in College prospectuses, 
and achievements are recorded and published in the standard College format. Counselling and Support 
Services are described in the College Student Handbook, which is made available to students together 
with the Complaints and Disciplinary Procedure leaflets at Induction. 

Disclosure of information to auditors 

The Members who held office at the date of approval of this report confirm that, so far as they are each 
aware, there is no relevant audit information of which the College's auditors are unaware; and each 
Member has taken all the steps that he or she ought to have taken to be aware of any relevant audit 
information and to establish that the College's auditors are aware of that information. 

Approved by order of the Members of the Corporation on 10 December 2019 and signed on its 
,alfbY: 

/l~ 
U M Cum ella 
CHAIR OF THE BOARD 
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE 
The following statement is provided to enable 
readers of the annual report and accounts of 
the College to obtain a better understanding of 
its governance and legal structure. This 
statement covers the period from 1 August 
2018 to 31 July 2019 and up to the date of 
approval of the annual report and financial 
statements. 

The College endeavours to conduct its 
business: 

i. in accordance with the seven principles 
identified by the Committee on Standards in 
Public Life (selflessness, integrity, objectivity, 
accountability, openness, honesty and 
leadership ); 
ii. in full accordance with the guidance to 
colleges from the Association of Colleges in 
The Code of Good Governance for English 
Colleges ("the Code"); 

The Governing Body recognises that, as a 
body entrusted with both public and private 
funds, it has a particular duty to observe the 
highest standards of corporate governance at 
all times. In carrying out its responsibilities, it 
takes full account of The Code of Good 
Governance for English Colleges issued by 
the Association of Colleges in March 2015, 
which it formally adopted in September 2016. 
In the opinion of the Governors, the College 
complies with and in some cases exceeds all 
the provisions of the Code, and it has 
complied throughout the year ended 31 July 
2019. 

The Corporation 

It is the Corporation's responsibility to bring 
independent judgement to bear on issues of 
strategy, performance, resources and 
standards of conduct. 

The Corporation is made up of a diverse and 
balanced range of people from business, the 
professions, education, the local community, 
staff, and students. 

The Corporation is provided with regular and 
timely information on the overall financial 
performance of the College together with other 
information and analysis such as performance 
against funding targets, proposed capital 
expenditure, curriculum development, quality 
matters and personnel related matters such as 
health and safety and environmental issues. 

The Corporation meets 4 times per annum 
plus a residential conference. 

The Corporation conducts its business through 
a number of committees. Each committee has 
terms of reference, which have been approved 
by the Corporation. These committees are 
Academic Standards and Performance 
Capital and Resources Programme, Staff 
Consultative, Student Consultative 
Remuneration, Search and Audit & Risk 
Committee. Full minutes of all meetings, 
except those deemed to be confidential by the 
Corporation, are available on the College's 
website www.newham.ac.uk or from the clerk 
to the corporation at the address on page 21. 

The Clerk to the corporation maintains a 
register of financial and personal interests of 
the governors. The register is available for 
inspection at the College's address on page 
21. 

All governors are able to take independent 
professional advice in furtherance of their 
duties at the College's expense and have 
access to the Clerk to the Corporation, who is 
responsible to the Board for ensuring 
compliance with all applicable procedures and 
regulations. The appointment, evaluation and 
removal of the Clerk are matters for the 
Corporation as a whole. 

Formal agendas, papers and reports are 
supplied to governors in a timely manner, prior 
to Board meetings. Briefings are also provided 
on an ad-hoc basis. 

The Corporation has a strong and independent 
non-executive element and no individual or 
group dominates its decision making process. 
The Corporation considers that each of its 
non-executive members is independent of 
management and free from any business or 
other relationship, which could materially 
interfere with the exercise of their independent 
judgement. 

There is a clear division of responsibility in that 
the roles of the Chair and Accounting Officer 
are separate. 
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Appointments to the Corporation 

Any new appointments to the Corporation are 
a matter for the consideration of the 
Corporation as a whole. The Corporation has 
a Search Committee consisting of 3 members 
of the Corporation, which is responsible for the 
selection and nomination of any new member 
for the Corporation's consideration. The 
Corporation is responsible for ensuring that 
appropriate training is provided as required. 
Members of the Corporation are appointed for 
a term of office not exceeding 3 years. 

Corporation peñormance 

Corporation performance is reviewed regularly 
and includes Financial Performance Reviews, 
Quality and Teaching training, Self 
Assessment Report (SAR), Annual Self 
Assessment. A considerable focus on 
Corporate Performance has ensured College 
Performance has been significantly improved 
across a number of key areas within the 
College. This focus will continue during 
2018/19 as the colleges strives to achieve 
OFSTED 'outstanding' performance. The 
College carried out a self assessment for the 
year ended 31 July 2019 and graded itself as 
Good on the Ofsted scale. 

Organisational Structure and Decision 
Making 

The Board of Governors consists of a Chair, a 
Vice Chair, the College Accounting Officer and 
15 other mem bers including two students and 
one staff member. 

The Board takes decisions on all matters 
regarding strategic and financial planning; 
such decisions are based upon papers 
prepared by College officers and are 
considered at one of the Board's four business 
meetings during the course of the year. 
Operational decisions are delegated to the 
Accounting Officer in accordance with the 
financial authority which the Board sets him. 
The Board requires its committees to consider 
areas within their terms of reference in detail 
and to bring to the Board matters as 
necessary. The Board receives the minutes of 
all of its committees at the next available 
meeting to keep itself informed of the issues 
under consideration. 

Search Committee 

The Search Committee meets three times a 
year, or as required, to consider and make 

recommendations concerning the filling of any 
vacancy on the Board or its committees. It also 
considers and makes recommendations to the 
Board on the Board's composition in terms of 
skills, experience and balance. It has a 
membership of up to seven: Chair, Accounting 
Officer, 2 Board members and up to 3 co 
opted members. 

Remuneration Committee 

Throughout the period, the College's 
remuneration committee comprised a total of 3 
members being the Chair and 2 Board 
members. The Committee's responsibilities 
are to make recommendations to the Board on 
the remuneration and benefits of the 
Accounting Officer and other senior 
management personnel. 

Details of remuneration for the year ended 31 
July 2019 are set out in the financial 
statements. 

Audit & Risk Committee 

The Audit & Risk Committee comprises four 
members of the Corporation (excluding the 
Accounting Officer and Chair) and up to two 
co-opted members. The Committee operates 
in accordance with written terms of reference 
approved by the Corporation. 

The Audit & Risk Committee meets at least 3 
times per annum and provides a forum for 
reporting by the College's internal, reporting 
accountants and financial statements auditors, 
who have access to the Committee for 
independent discussion, without the presence 
of College management. The Committee also 
receives and considers reports from the main 
FE funding bodies as they affect the College's 
business. 

The College's internal auditors review the 
systems of internal control, risk management 
controls and governance processes in 
accordance with an agreed plan and report 
their findings to management and the Audit & 
Risk Committee. Management is responsible 
for the implementation of agreed 
recommendations and internal audit undertake 
periodic follow up reviews to ensure that such 
recommendations have been implemented. 

The Audit & Risk Committee advises the 
Corporation on the appointment of internal, 
reporting accountants and financial statements 
auditors and their remuneration for audit and 
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non-audit work as well as reporting annually to 
the Corporation. 

Finance arid Resources Committee 

The Finance and Resources Committee is 
required, by agreement, to consider the 
College's accommodation strategy and capital 
programme and make recommendations to 
the Board, on appointments, procurement 
strategy, contracts and progress. Its 
membership consists of six corporation 
members and up to two co-optees. 

Academic Standards and Perlormance 
Committee 

The Academic Standards and Performance 
Committee meets three times a year with the 
purpose of considering quality improvement 
strategies, including the setting of targets for 
student retention and achievement. The 
Committee also considers course performance 
indicators and forms views about how best to 
achieve the College's strategy of meeting the 
needs of Newham residents. Its membership 
consists of four Governors and one co-opted 
member. 

The Staff Consultative Committee 

The Staff Consultative Committee meets three 
times a year and provides an opportunity for 
consultation between the Board and the 
employees of the College. Issues discussed 
relate to the educational character and mission 
of the College, the strategic aims of the 
College, effective use of resources and the 
solvency of the College. Its membership 
consists of three Governors (including the 
Chair or his nominee) and up to nine members 
of staff. 

The Student Consultative Forum 

The Student Consultative Forum meets three 
times a year and gives students an opportunity 
to ask senior post-holders and Governors 
questions about the quality of the teaching and 
learning within College. At each meeting two 
to three issues are discussed at length, often 
in relation to initiatives aimed at improving the 
learning experience. Membership consists of 
four governors including the student 
governors. 

Internal Control 

Scope of Responsibility 

The Corporation is ultimately responsible for 
the College's system of internal control and 

for reviewing its effectiveness. However, such 
a system is designed to manage rather than 
eliminate the risk of failure to achieve 
business objectives, and can provide only 
reasonable and not absolute assurance 
against material misstatement or loss. 

The Corporation has delegated the day-to-day 
responsibility to the Principal, as Accounting 
Officer, for maintaining a sound system of 
internal control that supports the achievement 
of the College's policies, aims and objectives, 
whilst safeguarding the public funds and 
assets for which he is personally responsible, 
in accordance with the responsibilities 
assigned to him in the Financial Memorandum 
between Newham College and the funding 
bodies. He is also responsible for reporting to 
the Corporation any material weaknesses or 
breakdowns in internal control. 

The purpose of the system of internal control 

The system of internal control is designed to 
manage risk to a reasonable level rather than 
to eliminate all risk of failure to achieve 
policies, aims and objectives; it can therefore 
only provide reasonable and not absolute 
assurance of effectiveness. The system of 
internal control is based on an ongoing 
process designed to identify and prioritise the 
risks to the achievement of ·College policies, 
aims and objectives, to evaluate the 
likelihood of those risks being realised and 
the impact should they be realised, and to 
manage them efficiently, effectively and 
economically. The system of internal control 
has been in place in Newham College of 
Further Education for the year ended 31 July 
2019 and up to the date of approval of the 
annual report and accounts. 

Capacity to handle risk 

The Corporation has reviewed the key risks 
to which the College is exposed together with 
the operating, financial and compliance 
controls that have been implemented to 
mitigate those risks. The Corporation is of the 
view that there is a formal ongoing process 
for identifying, evaluating and managing the 
College's significant risks that has been in 
place for the period ending 31 July 2019 and 
up to the date of approval of the annual 
report and accounts. This process is 
regularly reviewed by the Corporation. 

The risk and control framework 

The system of internal control is based on a 
framework of regular management 
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information, administrative· procedures 
including the segregation of duties, and a 
system of delegation and accountability. In 
particular, it includes: 

• comprehensive budgeting systems with 
an annual budget, which is reviewed and 
agreed by the Corporation 

• regular reviews by the governing body of 
periodic and annual financial reports 
which indicate .financial performance 
against forecasts 

• setting targets to measure financial and 
other performance 

• clearly defined capital investment control 
guidelines 

• the adoption 
management 
appropriate. 

of formal 
disciplines, 

project 
where 

The College has an internal audit service, 
which operates in accordance with the 
requirements of the ESFA'S Post 16 Audit 
Code of Practice. The work of the internal 
audit service is informed by an analysis of 
the risks to which the College is exposed, 
and annual internal audit plans are based on 
this analysis. The analysis of risks and the 
internal audit plans are endorsed by the 
Corporation on the recommendation of the 
Audit & Risk Committee. At minimum, 
annually, the Head of Internal Audit (HIA) 
provides the governing body with a report on 
internal audit activity in the College. The 
report includes the HIA's independent 
opinion on the adequacy and effectiveness of 
the College's system of risk management, 
controls and governance processes. 

Review of effectiveness 

As Accounting Officer, the Principal has 
responsibility for reviewing the effectiveness 
of the system of internal control. His review 
of the effectiveness of the system of internal 
control is informed by: 

• the work of the internal auditors 
• the work of the executive managers within 

the College who have responsibility for 
the development and maintenance of the 
internal control framework 

• comments made by the College's 
financial statements auditors, the 
reporting. accountant for regularity 
assurance, the appointed funding auditors 
in their management letters and other 
reports. 

The Accounting Officer has been advised on 
the implications of the result of his review of 
the effectiveness of the system of internal 
control by the Audit and Risk Committee, 
which oversees the work of the internal 
auditor and other sources of assurance, and 
a plan to address weaknesses and ensure 
continuous improvement of the system is in 
place. 

The senior management team receives 
reports setting out key performance and risk 
indicators and considers possible control 
issues brought to their attention by early 
warning mechanisms, which are embedded 
within the departments and reinforced by risk 
awareness training. The senior management 
team and the Audit & Risk C.ommittee also 
receive regular reports from internal audit 
and other sources of assurance, which 
include recommendations for improvement. 
The Audit & Risk Committee's role in this 
area is confined to a high-level review of the 
arrangements for internal control. The 
Corporation's agenda includes a regular item 
for consideration of risk and control and 
receives reports thereon from the senior 
management team and the Audit & Risk 
Committee. The emphasis is on obtaining the 
relevant degree of assurance and not merely 
reporting by exception. At its 10 December 
2019 meeting, the Corporation carried out 
the annual assessment for the year ended 31 
July 2019 by considering documentation from 
the senior management team and internal 
audit, and taking account of events since 31 
July 2019. 

Based on the advice of the' Audit & Risk 
Committee and the Accounting Officer, the 
Corporation is of the opinion that the College 
has an adequate and effective framework for 
governance, risk management and control, 
and has fulfilled its statutory responsibility for 
"the effective and efficient use of resources, 
the so/veney of the institution and the body 
and the safeguarding of their assets'. 
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Going Concern 

After making appropriate enqumes, the 
Corporation considers that the College has 
adequate resources to continue in operational 
existence for the foreseeable future. For this 
reason it continues to adopt the going concern 
basis in preparing the financial statements. 

Approved by order of the members of the 
Corporation on 10 December 2019 and 
signed on its behalf by: 

M Cum ella 
CHAIR OF THE BOARD 

P Stephen 
ACCOUNTING OFFICER 
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The Corporation has considered its 
responsibility to notify the Education and Skills 
Funding Agency of material irregularity, 
impropriety and non-compliance with terms 
and conditions of funding, under the College's 
grant funding agreements and contracts with 
the ESFA. As part of our consideration we 
have had due regard to the requirements of 
the grant funding agreements and contracts 
with the ESFA. 

We confirm, on behalf of the Corporation, that 
after due enquiry, and to the best of our 
knowledge, we are not able to identify any 
material irregular or improper use of funds by 
the College, or material non-compliance with 
the terms and conditions of funding under the 
College's grant funding agreements and 
contracts with the ESFA. 

We confirm, on behalf of the Corporation, that 
after due enquiry, and to the best of our 
knowledge, we are not able to identify any 
improper use of funds by the College, or 
material non-compliance with the terms and 
conditions of funding under the College's grant 
funding agreements and contracts with the 
ESFA. 

We confirm that two instances of material 
irregularity and no instances of impropriety or 
funding non-compliance have been discovered 
to date. In the first instance, unauthorised 
financial commitments were made, in relation 
to the development phase of a capital project 
that was subsequently terminated and the 
commitments did not go through the proper 
internal authorisation process although the 
expenditures themselves were properly 
authorised. On the second occasion in 
September 2019 a fraudulent invoice was paid 
in error because proper checks were not 
conducted on the bank account details. The 
College has taken steps to strengthen its 
controls and re-train staff to prevent any future 
reoccurrences. If any further instances are 
identified after the date of this statement, 
these will be notified to the Education and 
Skills Funding Agency. 

M Cum ella 
CHAIR OF THE BOARD 
10 December 2019 

P Stephen 
ACCOUNTING OFFICER 
10 December 2019 
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The members of the Corporation, who act as 
trustees per the charitable activities of the 
college, are required to present audited 
financial statements for each financial year. 

The law applicable to charities in England and 
the terms and conditions of the Financial 
Memorandum between the Education and 
Skills Funding Agency and the Corporation of 
the College, requires the corporation of the 
college to prepare financial statements and the 
Members' Report for each financial year in 
accordance with the Statement of 
Recommended Practice - Accounting for 
Further and Higher Education Institutions, the 
annual Accounts Direction issued jointly by the 
Education and Skills Funding Agency and in 
accordance with United Kingdom Generally 
Accepted Accounting Practice (United 
Kingdom Accounting Standards) and which 
give a true and fair view of the state of affairs 
of the Group and College and of the Group's 
surplus/deficit of income over expenditure for 
that period. 

In preparing the financial statements, the 
corporation is required to: 

• select suitable accounting policies and 
apply them consistently 

• make judgements and estimates that 
are reasonable and prudent 

• state whether applicable UK 
Accounting Standards have been 
followed, subject to any material 
departures disclosed and explained in 
the financial statements 

• prepare financial statements on the 
going concern basis, unless it is 
inappropriate to assume that the 
College will continue in operation. 

The Corporation is responsible for keeping 
proper accounting records which disclose with 
reasonable accuracy, at any time, the financial 
position of the College, and which enable it to 
ensure that the financial statements are 
prepared in accordance with the Charities Act 
2011 and other relevant accounting standards. 
It is responsible for taking steps that are 
reasonably open to it in order to safeguard the 
assets of the College and to prevent and 
detect fraud and other irregularities. 

The maintenance and integrity of the College 
website is the responsibility of the Corporation 

of the College; the work carried out by the 
auditors does not involve consideration of 
these matters and, accordingly, the auditors 
accept no responsibility for any changes that 
may have occurred to the financial statements 
since they were initially presented on the 
website. Legislation in the United Kingdom 
governing the preparation and dissemination 
of financial statements may differ from 
legislation in other jurisdictions. 

Members of the Corporation are responsible 
for ensuring that funds from the Education and 
Skills Funding Agency used only in 
accordance with the authorities that govern 
them as defined by and in accordance with 
Further & Higher Education Act 1992, 
subsequent legislation and related regulations 
and the Financial Memorandum with the 
Education and Skills Funding Agency and any 
other conditions that may be prescribed from 
time to time. 

Approved by order of the members of the 
Corporation on 10 December 2019 and signed 
on its behalf by: 

Date: 10 December 2019 

P Stephen ~ 

ACCOUNTING OFFICER \~~ .. ~ 

Date: 10 December 2019 
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Name Date of Term of Date of Status of Committees served Board 
appointment office resignation appointment Attendance 

Andrew March 2010; 4 years March 2019 Independent Chair of Board until 100% 
Clark Reappointed Governor March 2019 

September 
2015; Chair - Member -Rem 
Reappointed & Search Comm & 
October 2018 FRC (Chair until March 
for 1 year 2019) 

Paul 1 July 2017 - Principal and 100% 
Stephen Accounting 

Officer 

Martin February 2014; 3 years Independent Chair of Board (March 100% 
Cum ella Reappointed Governor 2019) & Chair - Rem 

July2017 & Search Comm & 
FRC (Chair from 
March 2019) 

Andrew March 2012; 3 years Independent Vice Chair - SCC, 100% 
Edwards Reappointed Governor ASPC & Chair -SCF & 

March 2015 Member - Audit &Risk 
Reappointed Committee 
March 2018 

Andrew March 2012; 3 years Independent Member - FRC & 85% 
Hughes Reappointed Governor Mem ber - Search & 

March 2015; Rem Comm 
Reappointed 
March 2018 

Linda Jordan July 1993; 3 years Independent Chair - ASPC & SCF 100% 
Reappointed Governor &SCC; 
December 2013; 

Vice Chair of Board Reappointed 
July 2016; (September 2017), 
Reappointed 
October 2018 
for 1 year; 
Term extended 
in March 2019 
until July 2021 

Lorraine September 2017 3 years Independent Member- FRC 65% 
Reader Governor 

Quintin July 2001; 3 years Independent 85% 
Peppiatt Reappointed Governor 

December 2013; 
Reappointed 
July 2017 
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David December 2015; 3 years Independent Vice Chair of Board 85% 
Surdeau reappointed Governor FRC (September 

Decem ber 2018 2017) & Audit & Risk. 
Member of Audit & 
Risk (until March 
2019) 

Lloyd Septem ber 2017 3 years Independent Chair of Staff Voice 65% 
Johnson Governor (from July 2019) & 

Member - Audit and 
Risk and SCF 

Michelle May July2018 3 years March 2019 Independent 25% 
Governor 

Julianne October 2018 3 years Independent 100% 
Marriott Governor 

Mubin October 2018 3 years Staff Member - SCF and 100% 
Ahmed Governor Staff Voice. 

Bobby March 2019 3 years Independent Member - FRC & SCF 0% 
Seagull Governor 

James March 2019 3 years Independent Member - SCF & CQC 50% 
Beckles Governor 

Irfan Urnarji March 2019 3 years Independent Member - FRC 100% 
Governor 

Zarina Naqvi March 2019 3 years October Independent Member - CQC (until 50% 
2019 Governor October 2019) 

Claire March 2019 3 years Independent Member - CQC 50% 
Helman Governor 

Saima Rafiq Decem ber 2018 1 year HE Student Member - SCF 100% 
Governor 

Bianca December 2018 1 year FE Student Member - SCF 65% 
Ailenei Governor 

The members who served on the Corporation during the year and up to the date of signature of this report 
were as listed in the table above. 

Rem Comm - Remuneration Committee; ASPC - Academic Standards and Performance Committee; 
SCF - Student Consultative Forum; FRC - Finance and Resources Committee; SCC - Staff Consultative 
Committee; CQC - Curriculum & Quality Committee 

It is the Corporation's responsibility to bring independent judgement to bear on issues of strategy, 
performance, resources and standards of conduct. 
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KEY MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL 

Key management personnel are defined as members of the Corporation and members of the College 
Executive Team and the latter were represented by the following: 

Paul Stephen Principal and Accounting Officer & CEO 
Janet Gardner Deputy CEO (Formerly Deputy Principal - Performance, Quality & Inclusion) 
Anil Nagpal Deputy Principal- Finance & Infrastructure - until March 2019 
Nirmal Borkhataria Interim Chief Operating Officer- appointed March 2019 until July 2019 
Judith Abbott Chief Operating Officer - appointed July 2019 
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College Address: 
The East Ham Campus 

High Street South 

London 

E66ER 

Financial Statements Auditors and 
Reporting Accountants: 

RSM UK Audit LLP 

Chartered Accountants 

The Pinnacle, 

170 Midsummer Boulevard, 

Milton Keynes, 

Buckinghamshire 

MK91BP 

Internal Auditors: Scrutton Bland, 

Fitzroy House, 

Crown Street, 

Ipswich, 

Suffolk 

IP13LG 

Bankers: Lloyds Bank Pic 

East Ham Branch, 

14 High Street North, 

London 

E62HN 
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Solicitors: Eversheds Sutherland Limited 

Eversheds House 

70 Great Bridgewater Street, 

Manchester 

M15ES 

Irwin Mitchell 

Riverside East, 

2 Millsands, 

Sheffield 

South Yorkshire 

S38DT 
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Opinion 

We have audited the financial statements of Newham College of Further Education (the "College") 
and its subsidiaries (the "Group") for the year ended 31 July 2019 which comprise the consolidated 
and College statements of comprehensive income, the consolidated and College balance sheets, the 
consolidated and College statements of changes in reserves, the consolidated and College statement 
of cash flows and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting 
policies. The financial reporting framework that has been applied in their preparation is United 
Kingdom accounting standards (United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice), including 
FRS 102 "The Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland" as set out 
in our engagement letter dated 9 July 2019. 

In our opinion the financial statements: 
• give a true and fair view of the state of the Group's and of the College's affairs as at 31 July 2019 

and of the Group's and the College's deficit of income over expenditure for the year then ended; 
and 

• have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting 
Practice. 

Basis for opinion 

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) (ISAs (UK)) and 
applicable law. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's 
responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements section of our report. We are independent of 
the Group and College in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of 
the financial statements in the UK, including the FRC's Ethical Standard and we have fulfilled our 
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. We believe that the audit 
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. 

Conclusions relating to going concern 

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters in relation to which the ISAs (UK) require 
us to report to you where: 

• the governors' use of the going concern basis of accounting in the preparation of the financial 
statements is not appropriate; or 

• the governors have not disclosed in the financial statements any identified material 
uncertainties that may cast significant doubt about the Group's or the College's ability to 
continue to adopt the going concern basis of accounting for a period of at least twelve months 
from the date when the financial statements are authorised for issue. 

Other information 

The governors are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the 
information included in the Members' Report and Financial Statements other than the financial 
statements and our auditor's report thereon. The governors are responsible for the other information. 
Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other. information. \lYe do not express any 
form of assurance conclusion thereon. .! '", • . 

In connection with our audit and, of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other 
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the 
financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially 
misstated. If we identify such material inconsistencies or apparent material misstatements, we are 
required to determine whether there is a material misstatement in the financial statements or a 
material misstatement of the other information. If, based on the work we have performed, we 
conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that 
fact. We have nothing to report in this regard. 
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Matters on which we are required to report by exception 

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters where the Post-16 Audit Code of 
Practice 2018 issued by the Education and Skills Agency requires us to report to you if, in our opinion: 

• adequate accounting records have not been kept; 
• the financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records; or 
• we have not received all the information and explanations required for our audit. 

Responsibilities of the Corporation of Newham College of Further Education 

As explained more fully in the Statement of Responsibilities of the Members of the Corporation set out 
on page 17, the Corporation is responsible for the preparation of financial statements and for being 
satisfied that they give a true and fair view, and for such internal control as the Corporation determine 
is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material 
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

In preparing the financial statements, the Corporation is responsible for assessing the Group's and 
the College's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going 
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Corporation either intend to 
liquidate the Group or the College or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so. 

Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole 
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report 
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee 
that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs (UK) will always detect a material misstatement 
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually 
or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users 
taken on the basis of these financial statements. 

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is located on the 
Financial Reporting Council's website at: http://www.frc.org.uklauditorsresponsibilities.This 
description forms part of our auditor's report. 

Use of our report 

This report is made solely to the Corporation, as a body, in accordance with the Funding Agreement 
published by the Education and Skills Funding Agency and our engagement letter dated 9 July 2019. 
Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the Corporation, as a body those 
matters we are engaged to state to them in an auditor's report and for no other purpose. To the fullest 
extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone others than the 
Corporation, as a body, for our audit work, for this report or for the opinions we have formed. 

~~ H t)~ ~~,~ Lj.J> 
RSM UK AUDIT LLP 
Chartered Accountants 
The Pinnacle 
170 Midsummer Boulevard 
Milton Keynes 
Buckinghamshire MK9 1 BP 

Date:,l~ Q)etR¡1)'ara- ~ t t=j 
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2019 2018 

Notes Group College Group College 
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 

Income 
Funding body grants 3 28,175 26,223 29,208 26,788 
Tuition fees and education contracts 4 5,260 4,000 7,094 4,977 
Research grants and contracts 5 1,315 1,235 1,906 1,068 
Other income 6 5,560 2,308 5,275 2,102 
Investment income 7 36 67 15 48 
Donations and Endowments 8 18 18 
Total Income 40,364 33,851 43,498 34,983 

Expenditure 
Staff costs 9 24,129 19,088 24,171 18,160 
Other operating expenses 10 18,254 1~,249 15,777 14,325 
Depreciation and amortisation 12!13 2,432 1,676 2,425 1,678 
Interest and other finance costs 11 567 567 707 709 
Total Expenditure 45,382 37,580 43,080 34,872 

(Deficit)! surplus before other gains and losses (5,018) (3,729) 418 111 

Profit on disposal of tangible fixed assets 6 

(Deficit)! surplus before tax (5,018) (3,729) 424 111 

Taxation 

(Deficit)! surplus for the year (5,018) (3,729) 424 111 

Re-measurement of net defined benefit pension 
liability (5,806) (5,806) 5,445 5,445 

Other Comprehensive income for the year (5,806) (5,806) 5,445 5,445 

Total Comprehensive income for the year (10,824) (9,535) 5,869 5,556 
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2019 2018 

Notes Group College Group College 
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 

Fixed assets 
Intangible assets 12 247 228 152 140 
Tangible assets 13 53,283 37,172 54,413 37,644 
Investments 14 25 2,312 25 2,436 

53,555 39,712 54,590 40,219 

Current assets 
Debtors 15 3,105 4,681 3,059 4,273 
Cash at bank and in hand 3,846 3,664 4,834 4,679 

6,951 8,345 7,893 8,952 

Current liabilities 

Creditors - amounts falling due within one year 16 7,745 5,862 6,066 5,158 

Net current (liabilities)1 assets (794) 2,483 1,827 3,794 

Total assets less current liabilities 52,761 42,195 56,417 44,013 

Creditors - amounts falling due after one year 17 12,452 4,263 12,991 4,252 

Provisions for liabilities 
Defined benefit pension scheme 18 25,379 25,379 17,723 17,723 
Other provisions 18 2,181 2,181 2,131 2,131 
T otal net assets 12,749 10,372 23,572 19,907 

Unrestricted reserves 

Income and Expenditure reserve (14,212) (11,739) (3,389) (2,204) 
Revaluation reserve 26,961 22,111 26,961 22,111 
Total Reserves 12,749 10,372 23,572 19,907 

The financial statements on pages 25 to 53 were approved and authorised for issue by the Corporation 
on 10 December 2019 a d we signed on its behalf on that date by: 

, I/ ~\v-J ßY~ 
M Cum ella P Stephen 
CHAIR OF THE BOARD ACCOUNTING OFFICER 
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Income and Revaluation Total 
expenditure reserve 
reserves 

£'000 £'000 £'000 
Group 

Balance at 1 August 2017 (9,258) 26,961 17,703 

Surplus for the year 424 424 
Other comprehensive income 5,445 5,445 
Total comprehensive income for the year 5,869 5,869 

Balance at 31 July 2018 (3,389) 26,961 23,572 

Deficit for the year (5,018) (5,018) 
Other comprehensive income {5,806} {5,806} 
Total comprehensive income for the year (10,824) (10,824) 

Balance at 31 July 2019 (14,212) 26,961 12,749 

College 

Balance at 1 August 2017 (7,760) 22,111 14,351 

Surplus for the year 111 111 
Other comprehensive income 5,445 5,445 
Total comprehensive income for the year 5,556 5,556 

Balance at 31 July 2018 (2,204) 22,111 19,907 

Deficit for the year (3,729) (3,729) 
Other comprehensive income {5,806} {5,806} 
Total comprehensive income for the year (9,535) (9,535) 

Balance at 31 July 2019 (11,739) 22,111 10,372 
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Operating activities 
Cash generated from operations 
Net cash from operating activities 

Investing activities 
Interest received 
Capital grants received 
Purchase of tangible and intangible fixed assets 

Financing activities 
Interest paid 
Proceeds of new borrowings 
Repayments of borrowings 

Increasel (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents in the year 

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year 

Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year 

Notes 2019 2018 
£'000 £'000 

20 250 2,749 
250 2,749 

35 15 
554 99 

{1,395} (723} 
(595} (507) 

(38) (39) 

(514} (55?) 
(552} (595} 
(988) 1,444 

4,834 3,390 

3,845 4,834 
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 JULY 2019 

1. ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

General information 

Newham College of Further Education is a corporation established under the Further and Higher 
Education Act 1992 as an English general college of further education. The address of the College's 
principal place of business is given on page 21. The College has set out the nature of its operations in 
the Members' Report. 

Basis of accounting 

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Statement of Recommended 
Practice: Accounting for Further and Higher Education 2015 (the 2015 FE HE SORP), the College 
Accounts Direction for 2018 to 2019 and in accordance with Financial Reporting Standard 102 - "The 
Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the United Kingdom and Republic of Ireland" (FRS 102) 
under the historical cost convention modified to include the revaluation of freehold properties. The 
College is a public benefit entity and has therefore applied the relevant public benefit requirements of 
FRS 102. 

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these consolidated and separate 
financial statements are set out below. These policies have been applied consistently to both years. 

The consolidated financial statements are presented in sterling which is also the functional currency 
of the College. 

Monetary amounts in these financial statements are rounded to the nearest whole £1,000, except 
where otherwise indicated. 

Basis of consolidation 

The consolidated financial statements include the College and its subsidiaries (as per Note 14), 
controlled by the Group. Control is achieved where the Group has the power to govern the financial 
and operating policies of an entity so as to obtain benefits from its activities. The results of 
subsidiaries acquired or sold are consolidated using the purchase method for the periods from or to the 
date that control passes. All financial statements are made up to 31 July 2019. 

All intra-group transactions, balances and unrealised gains on transactions between group entities are 
eliminated on consolidation. Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the transaction provides 
evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred. Where necessary, adjustments are made to the 
financial statements of subsidiaries to bring the accounting policies used into line with those used by 
other members of the Group. 

Going concern 

The activities of the College, together with the factors likely to affect its future development and 
performance are set out in the Members' Report. The College/Group has had 'good' financial health in 
recent years, although this has been impacted in 2019 primarily by one-off costs associated with the 
now-terminated Renewal capital project together with underperformance of a subsidiary whose 
business operations are now under review. The underlying financial position of the College and the 
Group remains sound and all known factors affecting the forward year (including ability to repay loans 
and manage pensions deficit) were taken into account within the budget setting process for 2020. The 
financial position of the Group, its cashflow, liquidity and borrowings are described in the Financial 
Statements and accompanying Notes. 

As at the 31st July 2019 the College has £1.3m outstanding loans with bankers and LBN. The terms 
of the existing agreement are for up to 15 years. The College's forecasts and financial projections 
indicate that it will be able to operate within this existing facility and covenants for the foreseeable 
future. 
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1. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 

The College's occupational pension scheme is in deficit. From an investment perspective, this deficit 
has been driven by a fall in equities (schemes typically invest heavily in equities) and bond yields 
(arguably the matching assets for pensions are bonds). Rising mortality rates are also a factor. We 
are living longer than expected and, it is one of the reasons for a rise in the liabilities, and hence the 
deficit. 

Accordingly the College has a reasonable expectation that it has adequate resources to continue in 
operational existence for the foreseeable future, and for this reason will continue to adopt the going 
concern basis in the preparation of its financial statements. 

Recognition of income 

Grants - government and non-government 

Government revenue grants are accounted for under the accrual model and are recognised where a 
reliable estimate of the fair value of the asset received or receivable can be made on a systematic 
basis over the periods in which the related costs for which the grant compensates are recognised. 

Funding body recurrent grant for Adult Education Budget (AEB) is measured in line with best 
estimates for the year of what is receivable and depend on the particular income stream involved. Any 
under achievement of the AEB is adjusted for and reflected in the level of recurrent grant recognised 
in the Statement of Comprehensive income. The final grant income is normally determined with the 
conclusion of the year end reconciliation process with the funding body following the year end and the 
results of any funding audits. 16-18 learner-responsive funding is not normally subject to reconciliation 
and is therefore not subject to contract adjustments. 

The recurrent grant from Office for Students (OFS) represents the funding allocations attributable to 
the current financial year and is recognised when received or receivable. 

Grants from non-government sources, including grants relating to assets, are recognised in income 
when the College has met the performance-related conditions and the grant will be received. Income 
received in advance of performance related conditions being met is recognised as a liability. 

Government capital grants for assets, other than land, are accounted for under the accrual model. 
The grant income received or receivable will be recognised over the expected useful life of the asset, 
with any amount of the asset-related grant that is deferred being recognised as deferred income. The 
deferred income is allocated between creditors due within one year and those due after more than 
one year. 

Other income 

Income from the supply of services is recognised at fair value of the consideration received or 
receivable and represents the value of services to the extent there is a right to consideration. 

Income from tuition fees is recognised over the period for which it is received. 

Retirement benefits 

Retirement benefits to employees of the Group are principally provided by Teachers' Pensions 
Scheme (TPS) and the Local Government Pension Scheme (LGPS), which are multi-employer 
defined benefit plans. 

The TPS is an unfunded scheme. Contributions to the TPS are calculated so as to spread the cost of 
pensions over employees' working lives with the Group in such a way that the pension cost is a 
substantially level percentage of current and future pensionable payroll. The contributions are 
determined by the Government Actuary on the basis of valuations using a projected unit method. The 
TPS is a multi-employer scheme but sufficient information is not available to use defined benefit 
accounting and therefore it is accounted for as a defined contribution scheme, with the amount charge 
to the statement of comprehensive income is the contributions payable in the year. 
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1. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 

Differences between contributions payable in the year and contributions actually paid are shown as 
either accruals or prepayments. 

The LGPS is a funded scheme, and the assets of the scheme are held separately. Pension schemes 
are measured at fair value and liabilities are measured on an actuarial basis using the projected unit 
credit method. The actuarial valuations are obtained at least triennially and are updated at each 
balance sheet date. The amounts charged to operating surplus are the current service costs and the 

costs of scheme introductions, benefit changes, settlements and curtailments. They are included as 
part of staff costs. The net interest cost on the net defined benefit liability/asset is charged to 
comprehensive income and included within finance costs. 

Re-measurement comprising actuarial gains and losses and the return on scheme assets (excluding 
amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability) are recognised immediately in 
other comprehensive income. 

Short term employment benefits 

Short term employment benefits such as salaries and compensated absences (holiday pay) are 
recognised as an expense in the year in which the employees render service to the Group. The cost 
of any unused holiday entitlement the Group expects to pay in future periods is recognised in the 
period the employees' services are rendered. 

Enhanced pensions 

The actual cost of any enhanced ongoing pension to a former member of staff is paid by the Group 
annually. An estimate of the expected future cost of any enhancement to the ongoing pension of a 
former member of staff is charged in full to comprehensive income in the year that the member of staff 
retires. In subsequent years a charge is made to provisions in the balance sheet using the enhanced 
pension spreadsheet provided by the funding bodies. 

Fixed asset investments 

College 

Interests in subsidiaries are initially measured at cost and subsequently measured at cost less any 
accumulated impairment losses in the separate financial statements of the College. 

Interests in subsidiaries are assessed for impairment at each reporting date. Any impairments losses 
or reversals of impairment losses are recognised immediately in comprehensive income. 

Tangible fixed assets 

Tangible fixed assets are stated at cost/deemed cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated 
impairment losses. 

Land and buildings 

Land and buildings are stated at cost, or deemed cost for buildings held at valuation at the date of 
transition to FRS 102, less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses. 

Equipment 

Equipment costing less than £1,000 per individual item or set of items acquired together is recognised 
as expenditure in the period of acquisition. All other equipment is capitalised and recognised at cost 
less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses. 
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1. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 

Depreciation and residual values 

Freehold land is not depreciated. Depreciation on other assets is calculated, using the straight line 
basis, to write off the cost of each asset to its estimated residual value over its expected useful lives, 
as follows: 

Freehold buildings and improvements - 15 to 30 years 

Long Leasehold land and buildings - the remaining lease term 

Furniture and equipment - 7 years 

Computer equipment - 5 years 

Motor vehicles - 5 years 

Residual value is calculated on prices prevailing at the reporting date, after estimated costs of 
disposal, for the asset as if it were at the age and in the condition expected at the end of its useful life. 

Subsequent costs, including replacement parts, are only capitalised when it is probable that such 
costs will generate future economic benefits. Any replaced parts are then derecognised. All other 
costs of repairs and maintenance are expenses as incurred. 

Intangible assets 

Intangible assets are initially recognised at cost and are subsequently measured at cost less 
accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses. Intangible assets are amortised to 
Statement of Comprehensive income on a straight-line basis over their useful lives, and for purchased 
computer software this is 5 years. 

Impairments of fixed assets 

An assessment is made at each reporting date of whether there are indications that a fixed asset may 
be impaired or that an impairment loss previously recognised has fully or partially reversed. If such 
indications exist, an estimate is made of the recoverable amount of the asset. 

Shortfalls between the carrying value of fixed assets and their recoverable amounts, being the higher 
of fair value less costs to sell and value-in-use, are recognised as impairment losses. Impairments of 
revalued assets are treated as a revaluation loss. All other impairment losses are recognised in 
comprehensive income. 

Recognised impairment losses are reversed if, and only if, the reasons for the impairment loss have 
ceased to apply. Reversals of impairment losses are recognised in comprehensive income or, for 
revalued assets, as a revaluation gain. On reversal of an impairment loss, the depreciation or 
amortisation is adjusted to allocate the asset's revised carrying amount (less any residual value) over 
its remaining useful life. 

Borrowing costs 

Borrowing costs are recognised as expenditure in the period in which they are incurred. 
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1. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 

Leased assets 

Finance leased assets 

Leasing agreements which transfer to the Group substantially all the benefits and risks and rewards 
incidental to ownership of an asset are treated as finance leases. 

Assets held under finance leases are recognised initially at the fair value of the leased asset or, if 
lower, the present value of minimum lease payments as determined at inception of the lease. Lease 
payments are treated as consisting of capital and interest elements. The interest is charged to profit 
or loss so as to produce a constant periodic rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability. 
The corresponding liability to the lessor is included in the balance sheet as a finance lease obligation. 

Assets are depreciated over the shorter of the lease term and the estimated useful economic life of 
the asset and assessed for impairment losses in the same way as owned assets. 

Operating leases 

All other leases are operating leases and annual rents are charged to comprehensive income on a 
straight line basis over the lease term. 

Financial instruments 

The Group has chosen to adopt Sections 11 and 12 of FRS 102 in full in respect of financial 
instruments. 

Financial assets and liabilities 

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when the Group becomes a party to the 
contractual provisions of the instrument. 

Financial liabilities and equity are classified according to the substance of the financial instrument's 
contractual obligations, rather than the financial instrument's legal form. 

All financial assets and liabilities are initially measured at transaction price (including transaction costs), 
except for those financial assets measured at fair value through the profit or loss, which are initially 
measured at fair value (which is normally the transaction price excluding transaction costs), unless 
arrangement constitutes a financing transaction. A financial asset or financial liability that is payable 
or receivable in one year is measured at the undiscounted amount expected to be received or paid 
net of impairment, unless it is a financing transaction. If an arrangement constitutes a financing 
transaction, the financial asset or financial liability is measured at the present value of the future 
payments discounted at a market rate of interest for a similar debt instrument. 

Taxation 

The College is considered to pass the tests set out in Paragraph 1 Schedule 6 Finance Act 2010 and 
therefore it meets the definition of a charitable company for UK corporation tax purposes. Accordingly, 
the College is potentially exempt from taxation in respect of income or capital gains received within 
categories covered by sections 478-488 of the Corporation Tax Act 2010 or Section 256 of the 
Taxation of Chargeable Gains Act 1992, to the extent that such income or gains are applied 
exclusively to charitable purposes. 

The College is partially exempt in respect of Value Added Tax, so that it can only recover around 3% 
of the VAT charged on its inputs. Irrecoverable VAT on inputs is included in the costs of such inputs 
and added to the cost of tangible fixed assets as appropriate, where the inputs themselves are 
tangible fixed assets by nature. 

One of the College's subsidiary companies is subject to corporation tax and VAT in the same way as 
any commercial organisation. 
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1. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 

Provisions and contingent liabilities 

Provisions are recognised when the College has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of 
a past event, it is probable that a transfer of economic benefit will be required to settle the obligation and 
the amount of the obligation can be reliably measured. 

Where the effect of the time value of money is material, the amount expected to be required to settle the 
obligation is recognised at present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects the risks specific to 
the liability. The unwinding of the discount is recognised as a finance cost in the statement of 
comprehensive income in the period it arises. 

Agency arrangements 

The Group acts as an agent in distributing bursary support funds from the funding bodies. Payments 
received from the funding bodies and subsequent disbursements to students are excluded from the 
income and expenditure of the Group where the Group does not have control of the economic benefit 
related to the transaction. 

2. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY 

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and other 
factors, including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the 
circumstances. 

Critical areas of judgement 
In preparing these financial statements, management have made the following judgements: 

• Determined whether leases entered into by the Group either as a lessor or a lessee are 
operating or finance leases. These decisions depend on an assessment of whether the risks and 
rewards of ownership have been transferred from the lessor to the lessee on a lease by lease 
basis. 

Critical accounting estimates and assumptions 
• Tangible fixed assets 

Tangible fixed assets, other than investment properties, are depreciated over their useful lives 
taking into account residual values, where appropriate. The actual lives of the assets and 
residual values are assessed annually and may vary depending on a number of factors. In re 
assessing asset lives, factors such as technological innovation, maintenance programmes, 
economic utilisation and physical condition of the assets are taken into account. Residual value 
assessments consider issues such as future market conditions and the remaining life of the 
asset. 

• Local Government Pension Scheme 
The present value of the Local Government Pension Scheme defined benefit liability depends on 
a number of factors that are determined on an actuarial basis using a variety of assumptions. 
The assumptions used in determining the net cost (income) for pensions include the discount 
rate. Any changes in these assumptions, which are disclosed in note 23, will impact the carrying 
amount of the pension liability. Furthermore a roll forward approach which projects results from 
the latest full actuarial valuation performed at 31 March 2016 has been used by the actuary in 
valuing the pensions liability at 31 July 2019. Any differences between the figures derived from 
the roll forward approach and a full actuarial valuation would impact on the carrying amount of 
the pension liability. The Government has conceded defeat in a court dispute over public sector 
pension reform age discrimination. Plans are now being developed to make changes to all public 
sector schemes including TPS and LGPS. Hence Colleges have been advised to include 
McCloud provisions in their 2018-19 financial statements and it has been included in note 23. 

• Impairment of fixed assets 
The College considers whether tangible fixed assets are impaired. Where an indication of 
impairment is identified the estimation of the recoverable amount of the asset or the recoverable 
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amount of the cash-generating unit is required. These will requires an estimation of the future 
cash flow and selection of an appropriate discount rates in order to calculate the net present 
value of those cash flows. 

3. FUNDING BODY GRANTS 

2019 2018 
Group College Group College 
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 

Recurrent Grants 
Education & Skills Funding Agency - Adult 15,452 14,805 15,805 15,376 
Education & Skills Funding Agency - 16-18 12,397 11,216 12,906 11,066 
Office for Students 214 105 385 249 
Release of Government Capital Grants 112 97 112 97 
Total 28,175 26,223 29,208 26,788 

4. TUITION FEES AND EDUCATION CONTRACTS 

2019 2018 
Group College Group College 
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 

Adult Education Fees 1,522 285 1,705 372 
Fees for FE Loan Supported Courses 1,054 1,041 885 868 
Fees for OfS Loan Supported Courses 1,080 1,080 2,435 2,435 

3,656 2,406 5,025 3,675 

Education Contracts 1,604 1,594 2,069 1,302 

Total 5,260 4,000 7,094 4,977 

The above figures for 2019 include fees of £1 ,040k (2018: £867k) paid by employers of students. 
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5. RESEARCH GRANTS AND OTHER CONTRACTS 

2019 2018 
Group College Group College 
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 

European Commission 843 843 644 644 
Other grants and contracts 472 392 1,262 424 

1,315 1,235 1,906 1,068 

6. OTHER INCOME 

2019 2018 
Group College Group College 
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 

Commercial nursery fees 2,553 45 2,521 44 
Rent receivable 378 246 360 265 
Retail income 1,012 962 741 700 
Release from deferred capital grants 615 87 571 43 (non ESFA) 
Miscellaneous income 1,002 968 1,082 1,050 

5,560 2,308 5,275 2,102 

7. INVESTMENT INCOME 

2019 2018 
Group College Group College 
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 

Interest on long term balance/ loan with subsidiary 32 34 
Other interest receivable 36 35 15 14 

36 67 15 48 

8. DONATIONS 

2019 2018 
Group College Group College 
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 

Unrestricted donations 18 18 
18 18 
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9 STAFF COSTS AND KEY MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL REMUNERATION 

The number of persons (including key management personnel) employed by the Group during the 
year, expressed as full-time equivalents, was: 

GROUP 2019 2018 
No. No. 

Teaching Staff 
Non-teaching Staff 

242 
415 

226 
420 

657 646 

COLLEGE 2019 2018 
No. No. 

Teaching Staff 
Non-teaching Staff 

180 
265 

174 
262 

445 436 

STAFF COSTS FOR THE ABOVE PERSONS: 

2019 2018 
Group College Group College 
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 

Wages and salaries 18,085 13,641 18,585 13,350 
Social security costs 1,654 1,326 1,687 1,282 
Other pension costs 3,423 3,290 3,453 3,176 
Payroll sub-total 23,162 18,257 23,725 17,808 

Contracted out staffing costs 865 729 446 352 
24,027 18,986 24,171 18,160 

Restructuring costs 

- Contractual 102 102 
T otal staff costs 24,129 19,088 24,171 18,160 
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9 STAFF COSTS AND KEY MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL REMUNERATION (continued) 

Key management personnel compensation 

Key management personnel are those persons having authority and responsibility for planning 
directing and controlling the activities of the College and are represented the Executive Team 
which comprises the Principal and other senior post-holders, please see page 20 for details. 

Emoluments of key management personnel, Accounting Officer and other higher paid 
staff 

2019 2018 
No. No. 

The number of key management personnel including the 
Accounting Officer was: 4 4 

The number of key management personnel and other staff who received annual emoluments, 
excluding pension contributions but including benefits in kind, in the following ranges was: 

Key Management Other Staff 
personnel 
2019 2018 2019 2018 
No. No. No. No. 

£10,001 to £15,000 
£15,001 to £20,000 
£60,001 to £65,000 4 4 
£65,001 to £70,000 4 7 
£70,001 to £75,000 1 2 
£75,001 to £80,000 2 
£80,001 to £85,000 
£85,001 to £90,000 
£115,001 to £120,000 
£165,001 to £170,000 
£170,001 to £175,000 

4 4 12 14 

Key management personnel (including the Accounting 
Officer) emoluments are made up as follows: 2019 2018 

£'000 £'000 

Salaries 467 441 
National Insurance 52 56 

519 497 
Pension contributions 63 57 
Total emoluments 582 554 

There were no amounts due to key management personnel that were waived in the year, nor 
any salary sacrifice arrangements in place. 
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9 STAFF COSTS AND KEY MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL REMUNERATION (continued) 

The above emoluments include amounts payable to the Accounting Officer (who is also the 
highest paid of key management personnel) of: 

2019 2018 
£'000 £'000 

Salaries 153 150 
National Insurance 20 20 

173 170 

Pension contributions 26 25 
Total 199 195 

The remuneration of the accounting officer was determined on 17 July 2018 by the College's 
Remuneration Committee. The accounting officer was not involved in setting their 
remuneration. The factors taken into account by the Committee in determining the accounting 
officer's remuneration for the year to 31 July 2019 included pay increases for other staff, 
performance against personal objectives; performance of the organisation; sector data on pay 
of accounting officers and benchmarking comparison to the broader market. 

A similar approach was to determine the remuneration of other key management personnel. 

The relationship between the accounting officer's emoluments, expressed as a multiple of all 
other employees based on full-time equivalents, is set out below for both basic salary and total 
rem uneration. 

2019 2018 
No No 

Basic salary as a multiple of median basic salary of staff 
Total remuneration as a multiple of median total remuneration of staff 

5.4 
5.5 

5.4 
5.5 

Members of the Corporation remuneration 

The Accounting Officer and the staff members only receive remuneration in respect of services 
they provide undertaking their roles of Principal and staff members under contracts of 
employment and not in respect of their roles as governors. The other members of the 
Corporation did not receive any payments from the College in respect of their roles as 
Governors. 

No expenses were paid to Governors in either year. 
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10. OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES 

2019 2018 
Group College Group College 
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 

Teaching costs 9,149 9,087 7,227 7,377 
Non teaching costs 4,037 3,141 4,545 4,028 
Premises costs 5,068 4,021 4,005 2,920 
Total 18,254 16,249 15,777 14,325 

2019 2018 
Surplus! Deficit is stated after charging: Group College Group College 

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 
Auditors' remuneration: 
Financial statements audit: 
- Audit of Group! College 51 51 51 51 
- Audit of Subsidiaries 25 24 
- Non-Audit Services 15 8 
Internal audit 52 42 52 42 
Operating lease rentals 516 100 443 100 
Loss on disposal of fixed assets 6 

11. INTEREST PAYABLE AND OTHER FINANCE COSTS 

2019 2018 
Group College Group College 
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 

Bank loans, overdrafts and other loans 38 38 39 41 
Unwinding of discounts in relation to enhanced 
pensions 49 49 80 80 
Net interest on defined pension liability (note 23) 480 480 588 588 

567 567 707 709 
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12. INTANGIBLE FIXED ASSETS (GROUP) 

Software & 
website 
costs 
£'000 

Cost 
At 1 August 2018 
Additions 
Disposals 
At 31 July 2019 

714 
168 

(386) 
496 

Amortisation 
At 1 August 2018 
Charge for year 
Eliminated in respect of disposals 
At 31 July 2019 

563 
72 

(386) 
249 

Net book value 
At 31 July 2019 247 

Net book value 
At 31 July 2018 152 

13. INTANGIBLE FIXED ASSETS (COLLEGE ONLY) 

Software & 
website 
costs 
£'000 

Cost 
At 1 August 2018 
Additions 
Disposals 
At 31 July 2019 

680 
156 

(386) 
450 

Amortisation 
At 1 August 2018 
Charge for year 
Eliminated in respect of disposals 
At 31 July 2019 

541 
67 

(386) 
222 

Net book value 
At 31 July 2019 228 

Net book value 
At 31 July 2018 140 
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13. TANGIBLE FIXED ASSETS (GROUP) 

Furniture & Computer Motor 
land & Buildings Equipment Equipment Vehicles Total 

long 
Freehold leasehold 

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 
Cost or Valuation 
At 1 August 2018 105,438 1,491 1,825 1,732 29 110,515 
Additions 724 47 120 337 1,228 
Disposals (311 } {458} {769} 
At 31 July 2019 106,162 1,538 1,634 1,611 30 110,974 

Depreciation 
At 1 August 2018 52,746 1,069 1,366 911 8 56,100 
Charge for year 1,721 27 237 369 7 2,360 
Eliminated in respect 
of disposals (311 } {458} {769} 
At 31 July 2019 54,467 1,096 1,292 822 13 57,691 

Net book value 
At 31 July 2019 51,695 441 342 789 17 53,283 

Net book value 
At 31 July 2018 52,692 420 459 821 22 54,413 

Included above is land with a value of £29,500,000. 

If the land was stated at the historical cost amount it would be included at a value of £2,539,169. 
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13. TANGIBLE FIXED ASSETS (COLLEGE ONLY) 

Land & Furniture & Computer Motor Total Buildings Equipment Equipment Vehicles 
Freehold 

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 
Cost or Valuation 
At 1 August 2018 80,752 1,195 1,295 8 83,250 
Additions 724 88 324 1,136 
Disposals (311 ) (458) (769) 
At 31 July 2019 81,476 972 1,161 8 83,617 

Depreciation 
At 1 August 2018 44,179 797 626 3 45,605 
Charge for year 1,056 216 336 1,609 
Eliminated in respect of disposals (311 ) (458) (769) 
At 31 July 2019 45,235 702 504 4 46,445 

Net book value 
At 31 July 2019 36,241 271 657 4 37,172 

Net book value 
At 31 July 2018 36,573 399 669 5 37,644 

On transition to FRS 102 land with a carrying value of £24,000k was revalued to fair value and the fair 
value has been treated as deemed cost at that date. If the land was stated at the historical cost 
amount it would be included at a carrying value of £1 ,889k. 

Buildings with a net book value of £24,504k (2018: £26,406k) were impaired at 31 July 2014 by 
£15,984k. £7,615k of this impairment was written off to the Revaluation Reserve with the remaining 
£8,369k being debited to the income and expenditure reserve. On a historical cost basis these assets 
would have been included at a cost of £53,449k with accumulated depreciation of £27,043k. 

Land and buildings with a net book value of £5,620k (2018: £6,259k) have been funded and inherited 
from local authority sources. 

Included in the tangible fixed assets is £3,400k (2018: £3,602k) net book value for items funded by 
Government and European capital grants. Should these assets be sold, the College would either have 
to surrender the sale proceeds to the Education and Skills Funding Agency or use them in 
accordance with the financial memorandum with the Education and Skills Funding Agency. 

If inherited land and buildings had not been revalued they would have been included at the following 
historical cost amounts: 

£'000 

Cost 
Aggregate depreciation based on cost 
Net book value based on cost 

28,050 
20,539 
7,511 
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14 FIXED ASSET INVESTMENTS 

2019 2018 
Group College Group College 
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 

Shares in subsidiary undertakings 357 357 
Other assets in subsidiary undertakings 1,457 1,580 
Long term loan to subsidiaries 342 343 
Long term loan to jointly controlled entity 25 25 25 25 
Capital contribution 131 131 

25 2,312 25 2,436 

The College has an interest in seven companies namely, East London College Services Limited, 
Newham Foundation, Digital Skills Solutions Limited, Newham Training and Education Centre, 
Learning Revolution Trust, The Fashion and Textile Museum and East London College Alliance 
Limited. 

• The registered office of Newham Foundation, Learning Revolution Trust, Digital Skills 
Solutions Limited, East London College Services Limited and The Fashion and Textile 
Museum is Newham College of Further Education, East Ham Campus, High Street South, 
London E6 6ER. The registered office of Newham Training and Education Centre 
(NEWTEC) is 22 Deanery Road, Stratford, London E15 4GY. 

• East London College Services Limited, a company incorporated in England and Wales, is 
wholly owned by the College with an issued share capital of £1, and was formed in 1993, 
but did not trade during the period of these accounts. 

• Newham Foundation is an educational/facilities provider charitable company limited by 
guarantee, incorporated in England and Wales, jointly controlled by the College (80%) and 
the London Borough of Newham (20%). 

• Digital Skills Solutions Limited is wholly owned by the College with an issued share capital 
of £357,420. The company was formed in May 2003 and traded throughout the period of 
these accounts. 

• Learning Revolution Trust is a company limited by guarantee without share capital, 
incorporated in England and Wales on 7 November 2011 and registered as a charity on 24 
October 2012. 

• The Fashion and Textile Museum is a company limited by guarantee without share capital 
and incorporated in England and Wales on 11 July 1996 but did not trade during the period 
of these accounts. 

• Newham Training and Education Centre (NEWTEC) is a company limited by guarantee 
without share capital incorporated in England and Wales on 20 November 1989 and 
registered as a charity on 20 February 1990. The cost of investment in this subsidiary 
undertaking is a total loan of £400,000 (£370,000). The long term loan to subsidiary is 
interest free and has no fixed repayment period but is not repayable before 31 December 
2018. The loan has been discounted to reflect the financing nature of the transaction to 
£332,740 (£306,006). 

All of the six companies mentioned above are consolidated within the Group financial 
statements. 
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The East London College Alliance Limited is a federation between Newham College of Further 
Education and New City College and is a company limited by guarantee, without share capital 
incorporated in England and Wales in July 2015. Both Colleges are members of equal standing 
in the entity and the purpose of the company is to provide a formal, fully accountable, transparent 
vehicle for collaboration between the colleges. The company did not trade during the period of 
these accounts. 

The College invested £25k in this entity and this is shown as an investment in both the College 
and Group accounts. 

15 DEBTORS 

2019 2018 
Group College Group College 
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 

Amounts falling due within one year: 
Trade debtors 437 199 443 83 
Amounts owed by group undertakings 351 142 
Prepayments and accrued income 2,259 1,822 2,346 1,768 
Amounts owed by ESFA 287 200 
Other debtors 122 69 70 67 

Amounts falling due after one year: 
Long term loan to subsidiary 
Total 

2,240 2,213 
3,105 4,681 3,059 4,273 

Included within other debtors is a balance of £30k (2018: £30k) which is due in more than one 
year. 

16 CREDITORS: AMOUNTS FALLING DUE WITHIN ONE YEAR 

2019 2018 
Group College Group College 
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 

Bank loans and overdrafts 306 300 484 461 
Other loans O 27 27 
Trade creditors 763 481 734 478 
Amounts owed to group undertakings 74 721 
Other taxation and social security 704 572 739 600 
Accruals and deferred income 4,092 3,599 3,276 2,608 
Government grants (capital) 851 308 807 263 
Amounts owed to ESFA 829 328 
Other creditors 200 200 
Total 7,745 5,862 6,066 5,158 
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17 CREDITORS: AMOUNTS FALLING DUE AFTER ONE YEAR 

2019 2018 
Group College Group College 
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 

Bank loans 994 994 1,302 1,294 
Government grants (capital) 11,458 3,269 11,689 2,958 
Total 12,452 4,263 12,991 4,252 

Loans and overdrafts 

Loans and overdrafts are repayable as follows; 

2019 2018 
Group College Group College 
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 

In one year or less 306 300 511 488 
Between one and two years 488 488 376 368 
Between two and five years 319 319 645 645 
Five years + 188 188 281 281 

1,301 1,295 1,813 1,782 

Bank loans and overdrafts totalling £1,325k, at interest rates varying between 2.0% above 
bank prime rate and 6% fixed rate, and are repayable by instalments due between 1 
August 2018 and 31 July 2027. As at 31 July 2019, £875k of bank loans and overdrafts 
were secured against a portion of the freehold land and buildings of the Group. 
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18 PROVISIONS FOR LIABILITIES 

Group and College 

Defined 
benefit 

obligations Enhanced 
(note 23) pensions Total 

£'000 £'000 £'000 

At August 2018 17,723 2,131 19,854 
Amount utilised 5,807 (162) 5,645 
Additional provisions in the year 1,849 1,849 
Unwind of discount 49 49 
Released unused provisions 163 163 
At 31 July 2019 25,379 2,181 27,560 

The enhanced pension provision relates to the cost of staff who have already left the College's 
employ and commitments for reorganisation costs from which the College cannot reasonably 
withdraw at the balance sheet date. This provision has been recalculated in accordance with 
guidance issued by the funding bodies. 

The principal assumptions for this calculation are: 
Price Inflation 
Net interest rate 

2019 
3.50% 
1.70% 

2018 
3.50% 
1.70% 

19 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 

The Group has the following financial instruments: Group 
2019 2018 
£'000 £'000 

Financial assets 
Debt instruments measured at amortised cost 2,478 2,516 
Total 2,478 2,516 

Financial liabilities 
Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost 6,062 5,429 
Total 6,062 5,429 
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20 NOTES TO STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 

2019 2018 
£'000 £'000 

(Deficit)1 Surplus after tax for the year (5,018) 424 
Adjustment for: 
Depreciation 2,360 2,327 
Amortisation 72 98 
Investment income (36) (15) 
Interest payable 38 39 
(Decrease)/ increase in provisions 58 (177) 
Pensions costs less contributions payable 1,842 2,139 

Operating cash flow before movements in working capital (683) 4,835 

(Increase)/decrease in debtors (46) 1,087 
(Decrease)/Increase in creditors 989 P,174} 
Cash generated from operations 260 2,748 

21 CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 

Group and College 
2019 2018 
£'000 £'000 

Contracts for future capital expenditure not 
provided 634 1,201 

22 COMMITMENTS UNDER OPERATING LEASES 

The total future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases are: 

2019 2018 
Group College Group College 
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 

Payments due 
Not later than one year 426 15 399 57 
Later than one year and not later than five years 1,060 31 945 46 
Later than five years 1,442 1,559 

2,928 46 2,903 103 
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23 RETIREMENT BENEFITS 

The College's employees belong to two principal post-employment benefit plans: the 
Teachers' Pension Scheme England and Wales (TPS) for academic and related staff; and the 
Local Government Pension Scheme (LGPS) for non-teaching staff, which is managed by the 
London Pension Funds Authority. Both are multi-employer defined-benefit plans. 

2019 2018 
£'000 £'000 

Total pension cost for the year 
Teachers' Pension Scheme: contributions paid 523 982 
Subsidiaries' Pension contributions paid 133 277 
Local Government Pension Scheme: 
Contributions paid 1,235 734 
FRS 102 (28) charge 1,483 1,380 
Charge to the Statement of Comprehensive Income 2,718 2,114 
Enhanced pension charge to Statement of Comprehensive 
Income 49 80 
Total Pension cost for Year within staff costs 3,423 3,453 

The pension costs are assessed in accordance with the advice of independent qualified 
actuaries. The latest formal actuarial valuation of the TPS was 31 March 2012 and of the 
LGPS 31 March 2016. 

There were no outstanding or prepaid contributions at either the beginning or the end of the 
financial year. 

Teachers' Pension Scheme 

The Teachers' Pension Scheme (TPS) is a statutory, contributory, defined benefit scheme, 
governed by the Teachers' Pension Scheme Regulations 2014. The TPS is an unfunded 
scheme and members contribute on a 'pay as you go' basis - these contributions, along with 
those made by employers, and are credited to the Exchequer. The TPS is a multi-employer 
pension plan and there is insufficient information to account for the scheme on as a defined 
benefit plan so it is accounted for as a defined contribution plan. 

Valuation of the Teachers' Pension Scheme 

The Government Actuary, using normal actuarial principles, conducts a formal actuarial 
review of the TPS in accordance with the Public Service Pensions (Valuations and Employer 
Cost Cap) Directions 2014 published by HM Treasury. The aim of the review is to specify the 
level of future contributions. Actuarial scheme valuations are dependent on assumptions 
about the value of future costs, design of benefits and many other factors. The latest actuarial 
valuation of the TPS was carried out as at 31 March 2016 and in accordance with the Public 
Service Pensions (Valuations and Employer Cost Cap) Directions 2014 except it has been 
prepared following the Government's decision to pause the operation of the cost control 
mechanisms at the time when legal challenges were still pending. 
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23 RETIREMENT BENEFITS (continued) 

Valuation of the Teachers' Pension Scheme (continued) 

The latest actuarial valuation was carried out as at 31 March 2016 and in accordance with 
The Public Service Pensions (Valuations and Employer Cost Cap) Directions 2014 except it 
has been prepared following the Government's decision to pause the operation of the cost 
control mechanisms at the time when legal challenges were still pending. The TPS is a multi 
employer pension plan and there is insufficient information to account for the scheme on as a 
defined benefit plan so it is accounted for as a defined contribution plan. 

The valuation report was published in April 2019. The key results of the valuation and 
subsequent consultation are: 

Total scheme liabilities for service (pensions currently payable and the estimated cost 
of future benefits) of £218 billion 

Value of notional assets (estimated future contributions together with the proceeds 
from the notional investments held at the valuation date) of £196 billion 

Notional past service deficit of £22 billion 

Discount rate is 2.4% in excess of CPI 

The TPS valuation for 2016 determined an employer rate of 23.68% which was payable from 
September 2019 onwards (compared to 16.48% during 2018/19). otE has agreed to pay a 
teacher pension employer contribution grant to cover the additional costs during the 2019/20 
academic year. however, legal challenge to the 2015 public sector pension reforms could 
have a further impact on the scheme, which would have a retrospective application. 

The pension costs paid to TPS in the year amounted to £523k (2018: £982k). 

The TPS is a multi-employer pension plan and there is insufficient information to account for 
the scheme as a defined benefit plan so it is accounted for as a defined contribution plan. 

Local Government Pension Scheme 

The LGPS is a funded defined-benefit plan, with the assets held in separate funds 
administered by London Pension Funds Authority. The total contributions made for the year 
ended 31 July 2019 were £1,638k, of which employer's contributions totalled £1,235k and 
employees' contributions totalled £403k. The agreed contribution rates for future years are 
17.3% for employers and range from 5.5% to 7.5% for employees, depending on salary. 

The Government has conceded defeat in a court dispute over public sector pension reform 
age discrimination. Plans are now being developed to make changes to all public sector 
schemes including TPS and LGPS. Hence Colleges have been advised to include McCloud 
provisions in their 2018-19 financial statements. The key assumption is the assumed rate of 
future salary increases. 
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23 RETIREMENT BENEFITS (continued) 

Principal Actuarial Assumptions 

The following information is based upon a full actuarial valuation of the fund at 31 March 2016 
updated to 31 July 2019 by a qualified independent actuary. 

At 31 July At 31 July 
2019 2018 

% per % per 
annum annum 

Price increases - RPI 2.35% 2.35% 
Price increases - CPI 1.35% 1.35% 
Salary increases 2016/17 1.00% 1.00% 
Salary increases after 2016/17 3.85% 3.85% 
Pension increases 2.35% 2.35% 
Discount rate 2.10% 2.65% 

The average life expectancy for a pensioner retiring at 65 on the reporting date is: 

At 31 July At 31 July 
2019 2018 

Years Years 

Retiring today 
Males 22.8 22.7 
Females 25.3 25.2 
Retiring in 20 years 
Males 25.0 24.9 
Females 27.6 27.5 

The College's share of the assets in the plan at the balance sheet date was: 

Fair Value of assets 
At 31 July At 31 July 

2019 2018 
£'000 £'000 

Equity instruments 
Gilts 
Debt instruments 
Property 
Cash 
Other 

26,192 27,575 
1,719 1,491 
4,746 4,229 
4,783 4,099 
4,105 1,545 
6,651 4,923 

48,196 43,862 

3,796 4,590 

Total fair value of plan assets 

Actual return on plan assets 
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23 RETIREMENT BENEFITS (continued) 

Amounts recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive Income in respect of the plan are as 
follows: 

2019 2018 
£'000 £'000 

Amounts included in staff costs 
Current service cost 
Net interest on the net defined benefit pension liability 
Total 

2,627 
450 

2,285 
588 

3,077 2,873 

2019 
£'000 

Changes in the present value of defined benefit obligations 

Defined benefit obligations at start of period 
Current service cost 
Interest cost 
Contributions by scheme participants 
Actuarial (gains)/Iosses 
Benefits paid 
Plan introductions, changes, curtailments and settlements 
Defined benefit obligations at end of period 

61,585 
2,145 
1,623 
403 

8,427 
(1,067) 

459 
73,575 

Changes in fair value of plan assets 

Fair value of plan assets at start of period 
Interest income 
Return on plan assets (excluding net interest on the net 
defined benefit liability) 
Employer contributions 
Contributions by scheme participants 
Benefits paid 
Fair value of plan assets at end of period 

43,862 
1,140 

2,623 
1,235 
403 

(1,067) 
48,196 

The current valuation does not reflect the expected increase in benefits and therefore liability as a 
result of Guaranteed Minimum Pension ('GMP') equalisation between men and women which is 
required as a result of the removal of the Additional State Pension. Methodologies for a long-term 
solution are still being investigated by the Government as set out in the published (January 2018) 
outcome of the Government Consultation 'Indexation and Equalisation of GMP in Public Sector 
Pensions Schemes' and therefore the expected impact cannot be reliably estimated and consequently 
no provision/liability has been recognised. 
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24 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 

Key management compensation disclosure is given in note 9. 

Advantage has been taken of the exemption provided by FRS 102 section 33 from reporting transactions 
with other wholly owned group companies and controlled companies. 

25 AMOUNTS DISBURSED AS AGENT -LEARNER ~UPPORT FUNDS 

2019 2018 
£'000 £'000 

Funding body grants - 16 - 19 bursary 479 443 
Funding body grants - childcare 705 705 
Interest earned 6 6 

1,190 1,154 
Disbursed to students (1,126) (1,090) 
Administration costs {58) {58) 
Balance unspent at 31 July, Included In creditors 6 6 

Funding body grants are available solely for students. In the majority of instances, the College only acts 
as a paying agent. In these circumstances, the grants and related disbursements are therefore 
excluded from the Statement of Comprehensive Income. 

26 POST BALANCE SHEET EVENTS 

Since the balance sheet date, there has been an instance of material irregularity where a fraudulent 
invoice was paid in error because proper checks were not conducted on the bank account details. The 
College has taken steps to strengthen its controls and re-train staff to prevent any future reoccurrences. 
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Conclusion 

We have carried out an engagement, in accordance with the terms of our engagement letter dated 14 July 2017 and 
further to the requirements of the grant funding agreements and contracts with the Education and Skills Funding 
Agency ("ESFA"), to obtain limited assurance about whether the expenditure disbursed and income received by 
Newham College ("the College") during the period 1 August 2018 to 31 July 2019 have been applied to the purposes 
identified by Parliament and the financial transactions conform to the authorities which govern them. 

In the course of our work, except for he matters listed below, nothing has come to our attention which suggests that in 
all material respects the expenditure disbursed and the income received during the period 1 August 2018 to 31 July 
2019, has not been applied to purposes intended by Parliament and the financial transactions did not conform to the 
authorities which govern them. 

Matters arising 
Unauthorised commitments of £1 m were made in relation to the development phase of a capital project between 
October 2018 and February 2019 resulting in material expenditure being incurred on a contract which had not been 
authorised and procured in accordance with the College's policies and no evidence was provided to support that the 
required procedures, such as a tender process, had been performed when selecting a contractor. 

Other matter 
We draw attention to an incident reported in the college's statement of regularity, propriety and compliance, in which a 
breakdown in internal controls led to financial loss for the college of £435k, however our conclusion is not modified in 
this regard as the transaction occurred outside the reporting period 

Basis for conclusion 

The framework that has been applied is set out in the Post-16 Audit Code of Practice (the "ACoP") issued by the 
ESFA. In line with this framework, our work has specifically not considered income received from the main funding 
grants generated through the Individualised Learner Record (ILR) returns, for which the ESFA has other assurance 
arrangements in place. # 

We are independent of the Newham College in accordance with the ethical requirements that are applicable to this 
engagement and we have fulfilled our ethical requirements in accordance with these requirements. We believe the 
assurance evidence we have obtained is sufficient to provide a basis for our conclusion. 

Responsibilities of Corporation of Newham College of Further Education for regularity 

The Corporation of the Newham College is responsible, under the grant funding agreements and contracts with the 
ESFA and the requirements of the Further & Higher Education Act 1992, subsequent legislation and related 
regulations and guidance, for ensuring that expenditure disbursed and income received is applied for the purposes 
intended by Parliament and the financial transactions conform to the authorities which govern them. The Corporation 
of Newham College is also responsible for preparing the Governing Body's Statement of Regularity, Propriety and 
Compliance. . " • 

Reporting accountant's responsibilities for reporting on regularity 

Our responsibilities for this engagement are established in the United Kingdom by our profession's ethical guidance 
and are to obtain limited assurance and report in accordance with our engagement letter and the requirements of the 
ACoP. 

The objective of a limited assurance engagement is to perform such procedures as to obtain information and 
explanations in order to provide us with sufficient appropriate evidence to express a negative conclusion on regularity. 
A limited assurance engagement is more limited in scope than a reasonable assurance engagement and the 
procedures performed vary in nature and timing from, and are less in extent than for a reasonable assurance 
engagement; consequently a limited assurance engagement does not enable us to obtain assurance that we would 
become aware of all significant matters that might be identified in a reasonable assurance engagement. Accordingly, 
we do not express a positive opinion. 



We report to you whether anything has come to our attention in carrying out our work which suggests that in all 
material respects, expenditure disbursed and income received during the period 1 August 2018 to 31 July 2019 have 
not been applied to purposes intended by Parliament or that the financial transactions do not conform to the authorities 
which govern them. 

Our work included identification and assessment of the design and operational effectiveness of the controls, policies 
and procedures that have been implemented to ensure compliance with the framework of authorities including the 
specific requirements of the grant funding agreements and contracts with the ESFA and high level financial control 
areas where we identified a material irregularity is likely to arise. We undertook detailed testing, on a sample basis, on 
the identified areas where a material irregularity is likely to arise where such areas are in respect of controls, policies 
and procedures that apply to classes of transactions. 

This work was integrated with our audit of the financial statements of the College and evidence was also derived from 
the conduct of that audit to the extent it supports the regularity conclusion. 

Use of our report 

This report is made solely to the corporation of Newham College and the Secretary of State for Education acting 
through the ESFA in accordance with the terms of our Engagement Letter. Our work has been undertaken so that we 
might state to the Corporation of Newham College and the Secretary of State for Education acting through the ESFA 
those matters we are required to state in a report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we 
do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the Corporation of Newham College and the Secretary of 
State for Education acting through the ESFA for our work, for this report, or for the conclusion we have formed. 
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